
 

 

 
YOU MATTER TO US- CORPORATE PARENTING BOARD 

 

Date: Thursday 18th April, 2024 
Time: 4.00 pm 

Venue: Mandela room 

 
AGENDA 

 
 
1.   Apologies for Absence 

 
 

  

2.   Declarations of Interest 
 
To receive any declarations of interest. 
 
 

  

3.   Minutes- Corporate Parenting Board- 29 February 2024 
 
 

 3 - 12 

 
Standard Items  
 

 

4.   Care Experienced Youth Voice Update- March 2024- April 
2024 
 
Our Care Ambassadors will provide an update to the Board. 
 
 

 13 - 32 

5.   Corporate Parenting Board- Performance Data 
 
Dawn Alaszewski, Director of Children’s Care will present 
Middlesbrough’s Performance data to the Board. 
 
 

 33 - 44 

6.   Children in Care Health Update 
 
The Interim Designated Nurse Safeguarding 
Children/Children in Care (Tees Valley) will  provide an 
update regarding the health of our children looked 
after.             
 
 

  

7.   Any other urgent items which in the opinion of the Chair, may   

Page 1



 

be considered. 
 
 

 
Charlotte Benjamin 
Director of Legal and Governance Services 

 
Town Hall 
Middlesbrough 
Wednesday 10 April 2024 
 
MEMBERSHIP 
 
Councillors C Cooke - Elected Mayor (Chair), J Walker (Vice-Chair), D Jackson, J Kabuye, 
T Livingstone, M Nugent, A Romaine, Z Uddin, G Wilson, O'Connor and Sharp 
 
Assistance in accessing information 
 
Should you have any queries on accessing the Agenda and associated information 
please contact Joanne McNally, 01642 728329, 
joanne_mcnally@middlesbrough.gov.uk 
 

Page 2



You Matter to Us- Corporate Parenting Board 29 February 2024 
 

 
 

YOU MATTER TO US- CORPORATE PARENTING BOARD 
 
A meeting of the You Matter to Us- Corporate Parenting Board was held on Thursday 29 February 
2024. 

 
PRESENT:  
 

Councillors C Cooke - Elected Mayor (Chair), D Jackson, J Kabuye, T Livingstone, 
Z Uddin and G Wilson 
A Hart and H Sharp, Care Ambassadors 
 

ALSO IN 
ATTENDANCE: 

J Carrull, S Hetherington, M Farrow-Tait, P Harrison, T Mbah, J Morgan and  
S Turner 

 
OFFICERS: D Alaszewski, V Banks, T Dunn, R Hamer, G Nicholson, S Lightwing and J Tynan 
 
APOLOGIES FOR 
ABSENCE: 

were submitted on behalf of R Brown, C O’Connor, S Didsbury, K Glew and C 
Heaphy 

 
22/2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

 
 There were no declarations of interest received at this point in the meeting.  

 
22/3 MINUTES - YOU MATTER TO US - CORPORATE PARENTING BOARD - 28 NOVEMBER 

2023 
 

 The minutes from You Matter to Us - Corporate Parenting Board, held on 28 November 2023 
were submitted and approved as a true record. 
 

22/4 CARE EXPERIENCED YOUTH VOICE UPDATE- DECEMBER 2023- FEBRUARY 2024 
 

 A report of the Voice and Influence Manager was presented to update the Members on activity 
during the period December 2023 to February 2024. 
 
During December 2023 the care experienced young people held their Christmas party at the 
Riverside Stadium and also enjoyed a bowling event.  In January the group met and 
discussed ideas for activities in 2024 which included budgeting, cooking, creating an 
independence checklist and visiting a theatre.  A talk on personal finances and how to budget 
was also provided.  In February a session was held to inform young people how they could 
get involved in their Children Looked After Review and how this could be improved.  A guide 
for young people would be created as a result of the feedback from the session. 
 
The older care experienced young people/adults had participated in the following: 
 

 Attended the 'We Matter' groups in December 2023 and January 2024. 

 The Care Ambassadors supported the Participation Team with the engagement 
sessions at the special schools in Middlesbrough. 

 Helped set up the room for the 'We Matter' Christmas party and made sure all the 
young people had a great time. 

 Joined the Youth Council for their Christmas meal. 

 24 January 2024 - Interviewed candidates for the Director of Children's Care post. 

 24 January 2024 - Five older care experienced young adults met with the Care 
Ambassadors to hear all about the wonderful work they do. The group decided they 
wanted to create another Forum so they and others could have a voice. The first 
meeting was held on the 13 February 2024. 

 30 January 2024 - The Care Ambassadors, the five young adults who were going to 
attend the new Forum and two older members of 'We Matter' met with their Corporate 
Parents to talk more about the Pledges that had been made. An action plan had been 
created to make sure decision makers acted on what they had said. 

 31 January 2024 - Helped deliver a slot during the Mandatory Children's Services 
Induction session, where they explained their roles as a Care Ambassadors. 

 
Planned actions for the next few months included: 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



29 February 2024 

 

 Continue meeting with Corporate Parents and monitor progress with the Pledges. 

 Continue to work with the 'We Matter' and put on events to engage with more Children 
Looked After.   Engage more with older care experienced young people through the 
Forum and encourage them to become Care Ambassadors. 

 Have all our care experienced young people/adults set up as volunteers. 
 Create ASDAN awards to provide accreditation for their work and the young 
 people they work with Work with the Commissioning team to create 'Young 
 Commissioners' 

 Meet with more care experienced young people who live in residential care. 

 Involve 'We Matter' and the Care Ambassadors to take part in the Regional Children 
in Care Council work, attend the conference on the 3rd April and go on the residential 
12-14 April. 

 
The group requested that six key decision makers were identified to attend to Regional 
Children in Care Council Conference on 3 April 2024. 
 
AGREED that the information provided was received and noted. 
 
 

22/5 YOU MATTER TO US- PERFORMANCE DATA 
 

 The Director of Children’s Care presented the latest You Matter To Us Performance Data.  
The information provided had been compiled using the Children’s Services Analysis Tool 
(ChAT) based on OFSTED’s inspecting local authority services for children (ILACS) Annex A 
dataset (2020)/Inspection Report. 
 
The following issues were highlighted: 
 

 Concerns around health and dental checks. 

 Updated assessments for children. 

 Children returning home to live with parents. 

 Unaccompanied asylum seekers. 

 Financial data set. 

 Care leavers. 
 
The ChAT tool provided an overarching analysis of the key performance data and identified 
some trends around children looked after.  Comparison from January 2023 to January 2024 
showed a reduction of 50% in children coming into care.  Work continued around improving 
performance on decision making and the timing for dental checks and health assessments. 
 
Middlesbrough’s cohort of unaccompanied asylum seekers was currently below the quota and 
discussions were taking place with another Authority as to the infrastructure that would be 
required for Middlesbrough to support more young people.  This could also potentially provide 
a financial stream for the Council. 
 
Regarding the number of children returning to live with family or parents, some analysis had 
been undertaken around the original decision-making.  It was clarified that the decisions that 
were made had been correct when children came into care but sometimes the work needed to 
ensure that they were returned home safely had not always been completed as quickly as 
would have been preferred.    
 
Work was also being undertaken with Connected Carers, who were classed as Foster Carers 
and on Special Guardianship Orders, to try and reduce the numbers of children in care.   
 
Audits were undertaken on the last ten children or young people that came into care to try and 
learn from those experiences and ensure that there were consistent thresholds for early help 
and prevention.    
 
It was noted that all Corporate Parenting Boards used this same level of data.  The service 
needed to ensure that children received timely reviews and visits and, when it was safe to do 
so, were returned to parents or under a Special Guardianship Order.    
 
AGREED that the information provided was received and noted. 

Page 4



29 February 2024 

 

 
 

22/6 CHILDREN IN CARE HEALTH UPDATE 
 

 The Interim Designated Nurse Safeguarding Children/Children in Care NENC ICB presented a 
report, the purpose of which was to: 
 
• Demonstrate the duty to safeguard and promote the welfare of children in 
 care. 
• Assure the corporate parenting board that health services to children in care 
 were provided without undue delay or geographical prejudice. 
• Demonstrate the aim of the Looked After Health team was for sustained 
 improvement in the health and wellbeing of children in care and those leaving care. 
• Ensure the child’s voice around health issues were included wherever possible. 
• Report on compliance to statutory targets from the Looked After Health Team for 
 Harrogate and District NHS Foundation Trust. 
 
The report considered compliance for initial health assessments, review health assessments, 
health registrations and health passports. 
 
Local Authorities were responsible for ensuring a health assessment of physical, emotional, 
and mental health needs was completed for every child within 20 working days of becoming 
looked after.  Statistics relating to the  Initial Health Assessments undertake in Quarter 3 were 
detailed at Table 1 of the submitted report. 
 
Review Health Assessments had to take place at least every six months before a child’s fifth 
birthday and at least once every twelve months after the child’s fifth birthday within the month 
they became looked after.  Statistics relating to the Review Health Assessments undertaken in 
Quarter 3 were included at Table 2 of the submitted report. 
 
Compliance with initial health assessments within timescales was less than 10% and with 
review health assessments, less than 90%. 
 
Challenges faced included: 
 
• Delays in receiving medical consent for initial health assessments was 100% in Q3. 
• A lack of available clinics for initial health assessments accounted for over 89% of the 
 delays. 
• Throughout Q3 the Harrogate and District Foundation Trust team had experienced 
 significant sickness within the team, which impacted the  team’s capacity to undertake 
 review health assessments. 
 
Actions taken to address the issues were as follows: 
 
• Rapid improvement workshop remained in place. 
• A service review with the Designated Nurses and the Senior Clinical 
 Commissioning Officer was in progress and regular contract meetings remained in 
 place. 
• Tees Valley CiC service introduced the RHA risk assessment tool to ensure that 
 children and young people had their health reviewed in accordance with  need as 
 opposed to due date. 
• This risk assessment had been used throughout Quarter 3 to assess the risk in 
 relation to the team’s capacity. The Named Nurse risk assessed the health 
 records of all the children who had been allocated to the staff members not at 
 work. It was reassuring to see that out of 36 risk assessments, there was only one 
 young person who had increasing risk and needed seeing as a matter of  urgency. 
 
A Member queried the delays in receiving medical consent for initial health assessments 
(IHA).  It was clarified that the consent had to be obtained by the Social Worker and signed by 
parents to agree to their child receiving an IHA.  Social Workers had been reminded to ensure 
that they obtained the consent at the same time as the Section 20.  However, it was reiterated 
that this was not delaying the IHAs being undertaken as this was due to the lack of clinic 
availability.   It was highlighted that social care and health needed to look urgently at how the 
current position could be improved. 

Page 5



29 February 2024 

 

 
It was noted that data on actual health needs was not information that would generally be 
shared with the Board.  The requirements of the commissioning arrangements were that 
assessments were done within timescale and that children’s health needs were met.   
 
AGREED that the information provided was received and noted. 
 

22/7 CORPORATE PARENT PLEDGES TO CARE EXPERIENCED YOUNG PEOPLE 
 

 The Director of Children’s Care gave a presentation in relation to the Corporate Parent 
Pledges to Care Experienced Young People. 
 
The purpose of the pledges was to ensure that young people were holding the Corporate 
Parents to account and that progress on the pledges was regularly monitored through the 
Board. 
 
The following updates were provided within the presentation: 
 
On 23 October 2023,  care experienced young people met with the Interim Director of 
Children Care and the Service Manager for Residential and Resources to talk about what 
additional support they wanted to improve their experiences. 
 
On 9 November 2023 at the You Matter To Us (Corporate Parenting Board) wider 
engagement session, Corporate Parents heard what young people had said and made 
pledges to improve their experiences.  The pledges were included in the presentation. 
 
On 30 January 2024 – at the You Matter To Us (Corporate Parenting Board) wider 
engagement session, Corporate Parents worked with care experienced young people to 
understand more about what they wanted. 
 
All pledge-makers who were present at the meeting were invited by the Mayor to provide a 
brief verbal update on actions taken. 
 
A plan of action had been developed to monitor progress on each pledge.  The Mayor 
suggested that the Care Ambassadors should sign off on completed actions. 
 
AGREED that the information provided was received and noted. 
 

22/8 ANNUAL UPDATE FROM SOUTH TEES YOUTH JUSTICE SERVICE 
 

 The report outlined the offer to children who were looked after and also open to South Tees 
Youth Justice Service.   Some brief caseload demographic information was included to 
provide some context to the Board.  The report also focussed on the key achievements in the 
last twelve months and planned future development. 
 
The vast majority of looked after children and care leavers did not get involved with the justice 
system, however they remained over-represented compared with others in the criminal justice 
system.  In December 2022 the Office for National Statistics (ONS) published information 
which showed that children in care appeared to enter the justice system earlier than children 
who had not been in care.  Whilst imprisonment was a relatively unusual outcome, a high 
proportion of those in custody had Special Educational Needs and Disabilities (SEND). 
 
Information contained within the Local Authority Interactive Tool, showed that in 
Middlesbrough in 2023, 3% of children who were looked after had been convicted or were 
subject to a Youth Caution.  This was in line with the North East (3%) but above the national 
(in England 2%) figures. 
 
The breakdown of open cases between 1 January and 31 December 2023, was included at 
paragraph 10 of the submitted report.  The largest proportion of children open to the service 
were white British boys aged fifteen or over.   13.3% of children open to the service in 2023 
were children looked after.  The STYJS Executive Management Board met on a quarterly 
basis and scrutinised caseload information relating to first time entrants to the system, re-
offending and use of custody.  This multi-agency Board offered challenge to the service in 
relation to the data and had responsibility for monitoring and responding to any 

Page 6



29 February 2024 

 

disproportionality issues. 
 
The Service had successfully introduced three key new projects within the last 12 months: 
Turnaround, Immediate Justice and Custody Navigators. 
 
Turnaround was a new programme developed by the Ministry of Justice (MOJ), providing 
funding to Youth Justice Teams to enable them to intervene earlier and improve outcomes for 
children on the cusp of entering the youth justice system.  The overall aims of the Turnaround 
programme were to: 
 
• Achieve positive outcomes for children with the ultimate aim of preventing them going 
 on to offend. 
• Build on work already done to ensure all children on the cusp of the youth justice 
 system were consistently offered a needs assessment and the opportunity for 
 support. 
• Improve the socio-emotional, mental health and wellbeing of children. 
• Improve the integration and partnership working between YJS’s and other statutory 
 services to support children. 
 
Turnaround went ‘live’ in January 2023 and was funded until March 2025. STYJS had been 
given a target number of children to work with,  and to date only 1 out of 45 successful 
closures had gone on to re-offend.  Sadly, the eligibility criteria for Turnaround precluded 
Looked After Children, however it did allow the service to work with children subject to Early 
Help and Child in Need, and therefore the service worked closely with colleagues in those 
services with the aim of preventing escalation in both children’s care and the criminal justice 
system. 
 
In relation to Immediate Justice, the Government published the ‘Anti-Social Behaviour Action 
Plan’ in April 2023.  The Cleveland Police Force area was identified as one of four areas to 
receive funding in respect of ‘hot spot policing’ and additionally ‘Immediate Justice’ as part of 
this government plan.  In partnership with the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner 
and the other two Cleveland Youth Justice Services (YJS), a model of service delivery for 
Immediate Justice was developed.   Known locally as ‘Making Good’, STYJS now worked with 
children from the age of twelve who were referred in by Community Safety colleagues 
following a second incident of anti-social behaviour, thus working with them in a pre-crime 
space to prevent escalation in to the criminal justice system.  Educational and Restorative 
activity took place alongside reparative activity, which was victim led.  The criteria for this 
project was less restrictive than Turnaround and all children including those who were looked 
after were offered this intervention.  The project was funded until 31st August 2024. 
 
With regard to Custody Navigators, in conjunction with Cleveland’s Unit for the Reduction of 
Violence (CURV), the three YJS’s in Cleveland had developed a ‘Custody Navigator’ model 
focussed on providing immediate interventions when young people presented at custody, 
followed by advocacy to ensure appropriate longer term local support is offered and accessed.  
Four case workers were now placed into the custody suite in Middlesbrough to support people 
who had been detained because of a serious violence offence.  This offered the opportunity 
for ‘reachable and teachable’ moments to engage with young people involved in serious 
violent offending, and at an earlier point than ever before.  Navigators sought to identify 
opportunities to develop a trusting relationship whereby the detainee could be referred to 
appropriate support through a tailored service plan that connected them to services such 
counselling, mentoring, or help with conflict resolution, employment or substance misuse.  
Navigators would liaise with Social Workers of Looked After Children and share information 
about the custodial episode, and could continue to provide ongoing support to individuals 
beyond release where appropriate. This pilot would operate across Cleveland until March 
2025. 
 
A further key achievement for the service had been the introduction of the ‘Inclusion pathway’.  
The Pathway created a mechanism which enabled Case Managers to access support for 
young people who were at risk of disengagement from education.  The pathway had been 
designed to promote engagement in the education system, improve attendance, prevent 
exclusions (fixed-term and permanent), improve attainment and deliver well-targeted 
educational support.  The STYJS Inclusion Pathway was endorsed by the Middlesbrough 
Council scrutiny panel as a means of raising the needs of young people at risk of exclusion.  
The Education specialist within the service advocated for Looked After Children in such 

Page 7



29 February 2024 

 

circumstances to make sure their voice was heard and any additional needs taken in to 
account. 
 
Since January 2023 STYJS had commissioned a highly specialist speech and language 
therapist (SALT) to meet the needs of the YJS service.  The role of the SALT therapist 
included direct speech and language therapy intervention with young people, further 
assessment of children’s speech, language and communication needs including the 
development of personalised plans and recommendations which would influence their 
experiences within the justice system (Court or Police), and indirect speech and language 
therapy intervention.  The SALT therapist had reviewed all the written information and 
correspondence used by the service with children and families, and offered staff training to 
raise awareness of Speech Language and Communication Needs and strategies to support 
children. This provision was highly valued by staff, and positive comments had been received 
by parents and carers in relation to the service provided. The importance of this work could 
not be underestimated when such high numbers of children in custody had additional, and 
often undiagnosed, needs. 
 
The three projects were all time limited, with funding due to end by March 2025.  The risk was 
that funding might not continue, and these highly valued projects might be lost which would be 
detrimental to the children who could benefit.  The challenge for the service would be to find a 
way to either mainstream the projects into the service, or maintain some elements, which of 
course would need to be funded.  The longevity of each of these projects would be 
determined by external evaluation and consultation with external bodies (such as the Ministry 
of Justice (MOJ)). 
 
The Service would engage with all external evaluations relating to time limited/funded projects 
in order to maximise involvement and contributions to consultation processes. The STYJS 
Board would also be kept abreast of developments on a quarterly basis and might need to 
escalate discussions to a more strategic level depending upon the outcome of decisions made 
by external bodies. 
 
STYJS would continue to deliver targeted staff development sessions to raise awareness of 
working with Looked After Children within the criminal justice system, and also continue to 
deliver sessions as part of the Principal Social Worker’s ‘Hot Topics’ sessions to raise 
awareness of work within the Children’s Social Care workforce. 
 
AGREED that the information provided was received and noted. 
 

22/9 FOSTERING UPDATE 
 

 The Interim Head of Service, Placements and Resource, presented the Annual Report 
2023/2024 on Fostering which included statistical data on the Fostering Service. 
 
The Service continued to have the highest number of children placed with in-house fostering 
families.  Overall, there had been a reduction of 24 children in foster care over an 18 months 
period due to a number of reasons.  The largest number were children moving from connected 
care arrangements to family arrangements, such as Special Guardianship Orders.  In the 
previous 11 months there had been 17 connected carers deregistered in this respect. 
 
In February 2023 Middlesbrough Council increased payments to foster carers and introduced 
level payments instead of banding.  This meant that Middlesbrough Council were now 
competitive with Independent Fostering Agencies (IFAs) and over the last 12 months there 
had been an increase in approved foster carers.  In 2023, 11 foster carers were approved 
compared to the previous 12 months when 1 was approved.  There were 7 foster carers in 
assessment which would increase the number of placements to Middlesbrough children by a 
further 12 placements.  There had been a number of new foster carers who had transferred 
from other Local Authorities (LAs) and a number from IFAs to Middlesbrough Council.   
 
Over the previous 13 months, no connected carers assessments had gone out of the 24-week 
timescale.  Timescales and practice guidance was in place on connected assessments 
making them more robust and child-focused.  The service was stable with no agency workers 
across the three teams.  A Social Worker was DDP trained to lead and offer Dyadic 
Developmental Parenting to carers and social worker consultations.  The fostering service 
now received the same training offer as both Residential and Resources, giving social workers 

Page 8



29 February 2024 

 

and carers greater knowledge and support. 
 
A weekly stability discussion took place between Futures for Families and Fostering to prevent 
placement breakdowns for teenagers in fostering arrangements and the impact of this would 
be detailed in future reports. 
 
The creation of a dashboard for Fostering was underway which would give managers greater 
oversight of the service, and enable data to be more quickly accessible allowing managers to 
spend more time with staff as well as the ability to complete observations. 
 
There were a number of issues causing concern which were listed as follows: 
 
• The number of children that continued to be placed in unregulated connected care 
 placements as a result of no, or negative, assessments. 
• A failed launch of the “Mockingbird” fostering model in May 2023. This would be 
 relaunched in May 2024 with consultation meetings currently ongoing in this regard. 
• The recruitment of foster carers and marketing was handled regionally, led by TFC, 
 under the umbrella of Foster with North East. Since its inception in September 2023 
 there had been a reduction in enquiries leading to initial visits. 
• Available capacity with foster carers to care for teenagers in an emergency following 
 placement or family breakdowns. Don’t have enough carers for teenagers. 
 
Added complications included: 
 
• Restrictions on how the Council advertised for foster carers having to use Foster with 
 North East material and not being able to share the benefits of being a carer in 
 Middlesbrough.    
• Foster carers raising the instability in the wider social work workforce (Children and 
 Young People having multiple social workers). 
• Placements for larger sibling groups were difficult to find. 
• Some connected carers choosing not to take a Special Guardianship Order due to the 
 financial support offered. 
 
The service continued to aim to be able to meet the needs of 70% of looked-after children 
through in-house fostering provision by the end of 2025 and needed to recruit a substantial 
number of fostering families to achieve this.  A planned marketing campaign aligned with the 
terms of Foster with North East to target Middlesbrough residents over the coming 12 months.  
Trauma-informed training for foster carers and support in understanding how to create a 
trauma-informed environment with support from service.  All young people aged 12 plus to 
have access and support to the Pathway to Independence Booklet which offered support in 
developing skills as they reach adulthood. 
 
It was noted that a further 12 foster carers would need to be recruited over the next year to 
meeting the 70% target.  Given the number of enquiries received recently this would be 
challenging.  A marketing flyer would be included in council tax envelopes issued to 
Middlesbrough residents in the next month to encourage people to become foster carers.  The 
recruitment team also attended major public events in Middlesbrough, such as the MELA, to 
promote the service. 
 
It was highlighted that the pathfinder around Foster with North East would become 
compulsory within the next year and the majority of Local Authorities would be taking part for 
another year. 
 
In addition to the initial training offered by Foster with North East, Middlesbrough also 
provided its own in-house training for foster carers.  This included restorative and trauma-
informed training which demonstrated a wider range of support for Middlesbrough carers. 
 
With regard to Connected Carer arrangements, it was estimated that up to 70% of those 
carers would be willing to move to a Special Guardianship Order (SGO) if the financial 
arrangements were more favourable. 
 
AGREED that the information provided was received and noted. 
 
 

Page 9



29 February 2024 

 

22/10 NORTH EAST AND NORTH CUMBRIA CARE LEAVERS PROJECT - MIDDLESBROUGH 
 

 A report was presented that provided an interim update on the Care Leavers project from the 
North East and North Cumbria (NENC) Child Health and Wellbeing Network.  The report 
outlined the key findings of a recent questionnaire, summarised the projects’ purpose, 
expected outcomes and next steps. 
 
Within the footprint of NENC there were high numbers of cared for children and therefore the 
population of care leavers was significant.  Care leavers were more prevalent to suffer 
inequalities that their peers who had not been subject to the care system.   There was a 
commitment to levelling up and reducing inequalities faced by vulnerable groups within the 
region.   The project aimed to firstly engage with care leavers to understand what life was like 
for them and gain understanding of their day-to-day experiences which might impact on their 
wellbeing.  Consideration would then be given to  consider how services could work together, 
share good practice, and engage better with young people to improve life outcomes for them. 
 
Using the Core 20 Plus 5 Toolkit, the population of Care Leavers had been identified in 
Middlesbrough.  Consideration of data around mental health, housing, and work/education 
was identified. 
 
The Project Objectives were as follows: 
 
1. To hear the voice of our young people. To effectively work with our young people.  
 Capture their opinions which could help the development of a co-produced project 
 that was meaningful to them both qualitative and quantitative methods. 
2. Data collection. To understand the needs of our young people on leaving care within 
 an area of NENC to provide a representation of our cared for population using publicly 
 available data. 
3. Share learning across the NENC footprint via the creation of a report to be shared 
 with key stakeholders. 
 
Research undertaken to date included: 
 
• 3 health inequalities were identified through the core 20+5 analysis, those being: food 
 insecurity, emotional health and accommodation. This information was used to shape 
 the professional and Young Persons Questionnaires. 
• A 20-question survey was sent out to all members of Middlesbrough Children’s 
 Services staff, asking for feedback on current services, what professionals thought 
 were the key issues young people faced, and how services could be improved to 
 ensure maximum efficiency. 
• A 24-question survey was sent out to senior management and team managers to 
 pass on to every young person in their service to gain feedback on young people’s 
 views on services on how they could be improved, this was still open for responses. 
• 32 professionals responded to the survey. 
 
The professionals survey covered three main topics: mental health, housing and cost of living.  
The topics were highlighted as important through the core 20 + 5 analysis and the questions 
were structured around this. 
 
Initial findings highlighted that the majority of professionals felt that emotional pressure had 
increased for young people leaving care.  Some professionals believed the lack of fostering 
provision and young people being placed in residential homes, also had an impact on young 
people’s emotional health.  One professional stated one of the biggest impacts of young 
people’s emotional health was increased accessibility to street drugs. Professionals 
suggested that more awareness of VCSE services could help young people to be identified by 
more specialised services, as some also stated that most referrals go through to CAMHS or a 
GP. 
 
Concerns about housing were mostly about capacity, with one professional describing it as a 
“lottery” due to what is available at the time, and the location of the property.  Some felt the 
risks in the community was a huge concern.   Ensuring those young people who were more 
susceptible to exploitation were placed in an area that did not have known criminal and sexual 
exploitation was vital.   Professionals suggested more flexible and social support and more 
individual need to the end of care with a step-by-step approach to independence. 

Page 10



29 February 2024 

 

 
The impact of the cost-of-living crisis had been reported nationally as having a great impact on 
the expenditure of families and individuals.  Most professionals noted that one of their biggest 
concerns was the regular and increased use of foodbanks.  Some staff noted that Universal 
Credit was quite low, the current rate being £66.00 per week.   A question was also raised as 
to “why are so many care leavers on Universal Credit.”  
 
Professionals were interested to know how the addition to the protected characteristics would 
impact the offer from the local authority.  Raising aspirations and increasing opportunities for 
care leavers was a key theme  identified when asking professionals what could be done to 
deal with the cost-of-living crisis. 
 
The next steps would involve undertaking a detailed analysis of the professionals’ data and 
the analysis of young people’s responses.  Recommendations from the findings would inform 
project work to support Care Leavers in Middlesbrough.   Project developments would 
continue to be communicated to key stakeholders. 
 
AGREED that the information was received and noted. 
 

22/11 ANY OTHER URGENT ITEMS WHICH IN THE OPINION OF THE CHAIR, MAY BE 
CONSIDERED. 
 

 None. 
 

 
 

 
 
 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



1 

 
 

MIDDLESBROUGH COUNCIL 

CORPORATE PARENTING BOARD 
 
 
 

Report of: Kathy Peacock – Voice and Influence Manager  

 

 

Submitted to: Corporate Parenting Board- 18th April 2024 

 

Subject: Care Experienced Youth Voice Update March - April 2024  

 

Contribution to the guiding principles of the Corporate Parenting Strategy 

Your Home 

Your Family and Friends 

Your Education 

Your Adult Life 

Your Health and wellbeing 

Your Voice and Influence 

 
Is the report confidential or does it contain exempt information? 
 
Yes – The report contains photographs of young people and should not be shared outside 
of the CPB.  
 
A report with some photo’s removed will be sent separately and can be shared outside the 
Board   

 
What is the purpose of this report? 
 
To update the Corporate Parents on what care experienced young people have achieved 
and their plan for the next few months. To have the Corporate Parent’s discuss their 
involvement with the groups/activities to further support the work.   
 
Report Background 
N/A 
 
Appendices 
 
Report attached and a PowerPoint report on the Pledges update  
 
Recommendations 
N/A 
 
Why is this being recommended? 

Page 13

Agenda Item 4



2 

N/A 
 
 
Other potential decisions and why these have not been recommended 
N/A 
 
Impact(s) of recommended decision(s) 
N/A 
 
Legal  
N/A 
 
Financial 
N/A 
 
Policy Framework 
N/A 
 
Equality and Diversity 
N/A 
 
Risk 
N/A 
 
Actions to be taken to implement the decision(s) 
N/A 
 
 
Background papers 
No background papers were used in the preparation of this report. 
 
Contact: Kathy Peacock 
 
Email:  Kathy_peacock@middlesbrough.gov.uk 
 

 
 

Page 14



Middlesbrough's Participation Team facilitates open, safe, and inclusive 

spaces for care experienced young people to tell us what is important to 

them. We capture this information and support them to tell you so you can 

improve the support they and others receive.

















'We Matter' (Middlesbrough's Children in Care Council) 
Care experienced young people aged 11 - 16 years meet fortnightly at Easterside Hub 17:00 - 
18:30pm. 
Members include five young people in foster care, two young people in residential care and 
our five Care Ambassadors.
They have fun, have a voice and create events to hear from their care experienced peers 
They share their views with key decision makers who act on what they say and positively 
change services to meet their needs
They will support teams to act on what they say and help monitor the 'You Said, We Will, We 
Did' reporting tool

Older Care Experienced Young People 
We have five older care experienced young adults who have volunteer roles as Care 
Ambassadors. Three attend the 'You Matter to Us' - Corporate Parenting Board
They have established a Care Ambassador Forum and will invite older care experienced  
people to join them, to have a voice and create events for their peers
The Care Ambassadors support the work of 'We Matter' and the many other engagement 
activities that take place with young people with Special Educational Needs and Disabilities 
and the fortnightly Youth Council 

We support our care experienced young people/adults to be engaged in a variety 
of different ways.















The groups are supported by
Kathy Peacock - Voice and Influence Manager
Kelly Cowie - Independent Reviewing Officer (CiCC) and Youth Voice Practice Lead
Adam Hart - CAMHS Head Start Apprentice and Care Ambassador
Holly Sharp - Care Ambassador
Caitlin O'Connor - Care Ambassador
Jacob Green - Care Ambassador
Alisha James - Care Ambassador 

Care Experienced Youth Voice 
 March - April 2024 

Page 15











March 2024 
Joe Tynan came to our group 

We all said goodbye to Susie, thanking her for all her support with the group and wished her 
well in her new job

We heard that this would be Laurie's last group as she is leaving for a new job 

We looked at all your Pledges and wrote down what we would want 

'We Matter'

Page 16



'We Matter'





















Preparation booklet 
Key workers for preparation 

Preparation online App

Budgeting plans

Teach me how to cook - life skills booklet 

Teach me how to survive (cook, clean and other skills

Knowledge of safety in the outside world 

Teach me life lessons 

Bills 
Who to contact when first moving in 













Speak to friends
Ask me how I feel
Chill out time (alone on computer)
Speak to a counsellor/therapist
Online forms
Therapeutic music groups 









I know my plan and understand it
I want to be involved in decisions 

Keep updated 

Communication (keeps me in the loop)

Page 17



'We Matter'





















More social groups
Comfort bag - with note

Social Media 

Make an App - with contacts and emails

You always have someone to contact

Have guidance 

Don't make promises you can't keep

Visit me and talk to me 

Be interested in what i say 
Campaign on social media 











Someone to talk to about my future
Jobs and education (in School) 

Work experience 
A named contact

Someone from your career choice to speak to you about 
their job and what they do and think about it (pro's/con's 
- honest opinion 















Budgeting plans 
If necessary support 

Before we turn 16 years - knowledge on essential 
household jobs i.e. laundry. Local offer
Tell me my housing options 

Advice on how to run my own house

Check that I am okay

Make sure I have enough money 

Page 18



'We Matter'











Saying goodbye if they are leaving
Ask me how I am feeling

Keep me updated - Tell me what is going to happen 

Communicate

Don't leave!!!!!!











Good practical opportunities to learn  work experience
Careers advice earlier (Year 7-9)
Apprenticeships
Speak to Career adviser
Assemblies/announcements /letters 

Some of us attended the 'You Matter to Us'  engagement session and the training with 
Managers, Social Workers and Personal Advisors 

Page 19



Older Care Experienced Young People 











March 2024 
Attended the 'We Matter' groups
The Care Ambassadors supported the Participation Team with the engagement sessions at the 
special schools in Middlesbrough
On the 26th March - Attended Adam Hart's engagement event with Pathways to support him 
with his North East and North Cumbria Child health and wellbeing network research and 
understanding what issues care experienced young people face in their every day lives.

The 'Voice, Influence and Change' group met and started planning for the training session with 
Social Workers and Personal Advisors to be held on the 2nd April 

In 

Page 20



Older Care Experienced Young People 
March 2024 

Met with our Corporate Parents on the 28th March to work on their Pledges 

Information from this session has been sent as a separate report 
Page 21



Older Care Experienced Young People 
April 2024 

Ran a training event with Managers, Social Workers and Personal Advisors on the 2nd April 

April 2024 
Attended the Regional Children in Care Conference 'Let's Talk Change' on the 3rd April. Ran a 

workshop on 'Budget Busters' - playing a game on how to spend our setting up home allowance.  

Page 22



Over the next few months we plan to ... 



















Take part in the Regional Children in Care Council residential 12-14th April

Work with the Regional Children in Care Forum to improve support across the region

Continue meeting with Corporate Parents and monitor progress with the Pledges 

Continue to work with the  'We Matter' and put on events to engage with more 
Children Looked After 

Engage with more older care experienced young people through the Forum and 
encourage them to become Care Ambassadors  

Have all our care experienced young people/adults set up as volunteers

Create ASDAN awards to provide accreditation for their work and the young people 
they work with 

Work with the Commissioning team to create 'Young Commissioners' 

Meet more care experienced young people who live in residential care 

For more information:
Kathy_peacock@middlesbrough.gov.uk 

adam_hart@middlesbrough.gov.uk 

Cared For and Care Experienced Youth Voice 

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



‘You Matter To Us’ (Corporate Parenting Board) Engagement Event
28th March 2024 

During the session, the Corporate Parents worked on several of their Pledges looking at:- 
• What was their Goal?

• What would success look like? 
• What actions need to take place to achieve and timescales? 

• What are the barriers? 

The following slides detail what was recorded during the session 

P
age 25



 

Pledge Lead The Goal What would success look like? Actions needed Barriers 

Work with housing 
providers to provide 
more housing 

Chris Cooke - 
The Mayor

Sustained Safe Suitable 
Tenancy 

• All young people prepared for 
independence 

• Sustained Tenancy

• No more Air B&B’s

• More accommodation which is 
suitable

• More available accommodation

• Right support at the right time 

• Funding secured

• Resources

• Trained staff

• Identify good areas

• Consult young people

• Developing 
independence skills

• Poor Accommodation

• Unsafe areas

• No access to ID

• Inappropriate areas

• Poor transport links

• Unqualified staff

P
age 26



 

Pledge Lead The Goal What would success look like? Actions needed Barriers 

Ensure Pathways plans are 
aspirational supporting 
young people to have a clear 
vision in all areas.  Capturing 
clear views and wishes 
setting realistic steps to 
achieve.

Sharon 
Hetherington - 
Pathways
 

Co-Produce 
aspirational Pathways 
Plans 

• Short goals that young people can 
reach

• Positive review of achievements

• All plans have clear stepping stones 
– Housing, Education, training and 
employment and Health

 
• Positive points in all plans 

• All young people would have an up-
to-date plan with clear 
collaboration

• Young people will know what their 
plan said and what actions were 
being achieved

• Young people’s needs are carefully 
considered, and they get support to 
access further education, training 
and employment.

• Quality Assurance used to look at 
collaboration and quality 

• Training and 
development for 
workers

• Identification of 
what is good 
planning

• Practice and 
improvement team 
looking at good 
examples and 
practice and 
support 
expectations

• Workforce stability

• Collaboration with 
young person and 
social worker if 
relationship not 
established. 

P
age 27



 

Pledge Lead The Goal What would success look like? Actions needed Barriers 

Proactively work 
with mental health 
professionals to 
meet the needs of 
the young people 
who are affected by 
mental health issues.

Zafar Uddin - 
Executive 
Member for 
Children’s 
Services

• Access to 
emotional/Mental 
health support 
practitioner – Cared for 
and care experienced 
young people. Without 
waiting lists 

• Specialist team to meet 
the needs of our young 
people 

• Fewer disrupted homes 
• Stability in homes
• Access to support
• Timely accessible support 

• Lower hospital admissions
• Reduce substance misuse
• Enhance good behaviour

• Explore options to 
commission 
services 

• Custom safety plans 
for times of crisis

• Needs a CAMHS rep

• Drug and alcohol 
rep

• Training

• Awareness

• Family 
support/Network 
support

• Identity 

• Peer support 

• Finding the right 
practioners

• Financial 
constraints 

• Domestic violence 
and Domestic 
abuse. 

• Not in Education, 
Training or 
employment

• Housing

• Access to services

• Changes in personal 
Advisors

• Risk taking 
behaviour

• Not knowing who 
your working with 

P
age 28



 

Pledge Lead The Goal What would success look 
like? 

Actions needed Barriers 

To explore care 
ambassadors’ 
apprenticeships.

Sharon Hetherington - 
Pathways 
 

• No finance to pay 
for Apprenticeships

• No training to 
support

• Not the right 
overarching 
support

• Not enough roles
To ensure that our young 
people are prepared for 
adult life and currently the 
team are putting places in 
place to ensure this 
happens.

Rob Hamer Interim 
Head of Service for 
Placements and 
Resources RI for 
residential 
placements.

Preparing for 
Independence 

• Consistency of young people 
being able to meet daily health 
and emotional and financial 
needs. 

• Young people will transition to 
adulthood with a good place to 
live and be able to manage 
daily tasks with the skills and 
knowledge they have 
developed. 

• Quality Assure pathway 
planning and review actions 
being completed 

• Develop life skills 
training 

• Foster carers, 
residential staff and 
support workers to 
know what is needed 
to prepare young 
people 

• Staff retention

• Young people at 
different 
developmental 
stages 

• Financial support 
for Personal 
Advisors to support 
independence tasks

P
age 29



 

Pledge Lead The Goal What would success 
look like? 

Actions needed Barriers 

Implement training for 
social care staff to be led by 
young people.

Joe Tynan – Executive 
Director of Children’s 
Services 

100% of Children’s 
Services staff are trained 

• We get feedback from 
young people on their 
experiences 

• Better relationships 

• Young people gain 
experiences

• Celebrate young 
people’s achievements

• Conducive atmosphere 
for working

• Training for young 
people

• Incentives

• Involvement in their 
plan 

• Poor take up of 
training 

• No train the trainer 
courses

• Lack of skills 

• Lack of support P
age 30



Next Steps 

1. The Corporate Parents to consider all the areas, identify actions with timescales

2. The next engagement event will cover the remaining pledges 

P
age 31



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Official Sensitive#

Data to Insight is the sector-led service for local authority children's data professionals, working with 

support from the ADCS, DLUHC, DfE and Ofsted to help make better use of data.

Children's services Analysis Tool (ChAT) 
Based on Ofsted's ILACS Annex A dataset (2020) / Inspection Report

Middlesbrough

09 April 2024

P
age 33

A
genda Item

 5

https://www.datatoinsight.org/


Official Sensitive#

*Annualised rate for comparison purposes Other' includes not recorded, not stated, or neither M/F *Annualised rate for comparison purposes Other' includes not recorded, not stated, or neither M/F

Children's services Analysis Tool (ChAT) 09 April 2024

10/10/2023
09/04/2024

9%

Page 12

2 of the 88 CLA 

starters have 

previously been 

looked after

9%

Last 6 

months Eng

26%

Rate of CLA started per 10,000 children Age and gender Age and gender

5%

2022-23 (published)

from

Last 6 

months

2022-23 (published)
LA SNs Eng

to

26%

88 CLA started in the last 6 months 82 CLA ceased in the last 6 months

Children Looked After (CLA) started and ceased in the last 6 months

12%

4 of the 88 CLA starters 

were unaccompanied 

asylum seeking children 

(UASC)

LA

Reason episode of care ceased

Comparing the primary need of CLA starters

Adopted

9%

2%

Special Guardianship Order

SNs
11%

- 8% 12%

#REF!

Rate of CLA ceased per 10,000 children 

7

0

0

7

12

9

21

2

0

0

0

0

0

24

0

Adopted

Died

Care taken by another LA

Returned home to live with parents/ relatives

Live with parents/relatives (not PR)

Residence order granted

Special Guardianship Orders

Moved into independent living

Transferred to residential care funded by ASS

Sentenced to custody

Accommodation on remand ended

Age assessment determined child was 18+

Child moved abroad

Any other reason

Not recorded / Error

Number of CLA  ceased by reason in the period

15 10 5 0 5 10 15

Age 0

5

10

15

Age 20+

48 Males (55%) 36 Females (41%)

4 UASC M (5%) 0 UASC F (0%)

0 Other (not shown) (0%)

20 10 0 10 20

Age 0

5

10

15

Age 20+

43 Males (52%) 36 Females (44%)

3 UASC M (4%) 0 UASC F (0%)

0 Other (not shown) (0%)

63

90

68
59

72

52

0

20

40

60

80

100

'18-19 '19-20 '20-21 '21-22 '22-23 Q2

2023/24

(RIIA)

Last

6ms*

ra
te

 p
e
r 

1
0
,0

0
0

SNs Eng LA

47

61

84 82

69

48

0

20

40

60

80

100

'18-19 '19-20 '20-21 '21-22 '22-23 Q2

2023/24

(RIIA)

Last

6ms*

ra
te

 p
e
r 

1
0
,0

0
0

SNs Eng LA

98

1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0
0

20

40

60

80

100

120

Abuse or

neglect

Child's

disability

Parents

illness or

disability

Family in

acute stress

Family

dysfunction

Socially

unacceptable

behaviour

Low income Absent

parenting

Not

recorded

Code error

%
 o

p
e
n

 C
L
A

Last 6 months LA 22-23 SNs 22-23 Eng 22-23

P
age 34



Official Sensitive#

White Return to family
Mixed Adoption
Asian or Asian British SGO/CAO
Black or black British Supported living
Other ethnic group L/T residential
Not stated L/T fostering
Not recorded Other

Not recorded

Other' includes not recorded, not stated, or neither M/F

Children's services Analysis Tool (ChAT) 09 April 2024

Snapshot 09/04/2024Children Looked After (CLA) with an open episode of care

All CLA

524 Children Looked After (CLA) with an open episode of care

5%

Number

102

8%2% 2% 13%

Not UASC UASC

80%

20%

82% 7%

3%

0%

39%
78

204

38 children 

(7%) with a 

disability

#REF!

15 open unaccompanied asylum seeking children (UASC)

4%

Rate of CLA per 10,000 children (snapshot) Ethnic background

9% 9%

0%

Permanence plan

%

19%
4%

UASC as a percentage of CLA (snapshot)

0%

Age and gender

9%

Time since the child was last seen

0% 0%

3%

15%

Time since latest review

0%

7

22

0%

60%5%

1%

Page 13

Comparing legal status of open CLA (snapshot)

41
24
46

#REF!

37%

37%

14%

4%

3%

0%

5%

0%

a) 0 > 3 months

b) 3 > 6 months

c) 6 > 9 months

d) 9 > 12 months

e) 1 year or more

No review (New CLA <1month)

No review (CLA 1+ month)

Date error

88%

12%

0%

0%

0%

0%

0%

In the last 6 weeks

6 - 12 weeks ago

12 - 18 weeks ago

18 or more weeks ago

No visit (New CLA<1month)

No visit (CLA 1+month)

Date error

50 40 30 20 10 0 10 20 30 40 50

60 40 20 0 20 40 60

Age 0

5

10

15

Age 20+

286 Males (55%) 15 UASC Males (3%)

222 Females (42%) 0 UASC Females (0%)

1 Other (not shown) (0%) 0-17 population estimate

159
188

172
150 150 153

0

50

100

150

200

2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 Q2

2023/24

(RIIA)

Latest

snapshot

ra
te

 p
e
r 

1
0
,0

0
0

SNs Eng LA

0 0 0 0
2 3

0

5

10

2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 Q2

2023/24

(RIIA)

Latest

snapshot

%
 o

f 
o

p
e
n

 C
L
A

SNs Eng LA

23

61

0

4

11

0

0

0

0 20 40 60 80

Interim care order

Full care order

Freed for adoption

Placement order granted

Accommodated under S20

Detained on CP grounds in

LA accommodation

Youth justice legal status

Not recorded / code error

% open CLA

Latest snapshot LA 22-23 SNs 22-23 Eng 22-23P
age 35



Official Sensitive#

Placement type (open CLA)

Foster placement

Placed for adoption

Placed with parents

Independent living

Residential employment

Residential accommodation

Secure Children’s Homes

Children’s Homes

Residential Care Home

NHS/Health Trust

Family Centre

Young Offender Institution

Residential school

Other placements

Temporary placement

Total placements

Children's services Analysis Tool (ChAT) 09 April 2024

3 5

49 49

Page 14

LA 2022-23 47%LA 2022-23 72%

CLA placements by type and provision

Comparing short term placement stability

50%

70%

Snapshot 09/04/2024

0 0

0

0

0 65

0

0

2

Due to limited data in the Annex A dataset, ChAT does not present 

short-term stability alongside published statistics

182 90 524

CLA placements out of borough

Due to limited data in the Annex A dataset, ChAT does not present 

long-term stability alongside published statistics

0

20 0 29

0

#REF!

0

0 0 0

44%
SNs 2022-23 67%

0

47

0

May include "status" changes as well as placements

0 4 0

0 0

OtherOwn LA Private

9

0

SNs 2022-23

Foster placements Own provision

48%

Children Looked After (CLA) placements

Number of placements in the last 12 months

0

Total

Eng 2022-23

0 0

Duration of placements2

1

18

0

Eng 2022-23 68%

36835110223

2 0

4

Duration of latest placement for each current CLA aged under 16 who have been looked after for 2½ years or more
0

Comparing long term placement stability
0

0

0

0

0 0

10 0

252

1

May include "status" changes as well as placements

1

0

0

377

92

35

13

4

3

0

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7+

Not recorded

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

p
la

ce
m

e
n

ts

Foster

placements

Other

placements

Not recorded

Own

provision

Other

provision

Not recorded

7

14

24

30

116

0

0 > 3 months

3 >= 6 months

6 months > 1 year

1 year > 2 years

2+ years

Date error

54 53 52 54 55 53

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 Latest

snapshot

%
 o

f 
o

p
e
n

 C
L
A

SNs Eng LA

9
10

12
13

10

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23

%
 o

f 
o

p
e
n

 C
L
A

SNs Eng LA

65

69

66
65

62

56
58
60
62
64
66
68
70
72
74

2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23

%
 o

f 
o

p
e
n

 C
L
A

 c
o

h
o

rt

SNs Eng LA

P
age 36



Official Sensitive#

Number of all CLA with a missing incident
Percentage of all CLA with a missing incident
Total number of missing incidents for all CLA
Average number of incidents per CLA who went missing

Missing children offered return interview
Missing children not offered return interview
Missing children return interview offer not recorded
Missing children where return interview was n/a

Missing children accepted return interview
Missing children not accepted return interview
Missing children return interview acceptance not recorded

Number of all CLA with an absent incident
Percentage of all CLA with an absent incident
Total number of absent incidents for all CLA
Average number of incidents per CLA who were absent

Current open CLA who have been 

looked after for at least 12 months 

who have had a dental check in the 

last 12 months.

79%

82%

Current open CLA who have been 

looked after for at least 12 months 

with an up to date health 

assessment (in the last 6 months for 

CLA aged under 5, and in the last 

12 months for CLA aged 5-plus)

2 of 606 looked after children had an absent incident in the last 12 months

LA 22-23

13%

Children's services Analysis Tool (ChAT) 09 April 2024

0 of 79

SNs 22-23 Eng 22-23

SNs 22-23

5.4
424

11%
79 of 606

2%

1.0

1%

4.0

77%

79

0
5.0

22%

0%

0 of 79

0%

Absent from placement

#REF!

Latest data LA 22-23
2 of 606

1 of 79

Health assessments

Dental checks

1%

79 of 606 looked after children had a missing incident in the last 12 months

Missing incidents - return home interviews

17 of 79

0.0

Eng 22-23

0

###

Latest data

79 of 79

Latest data

12%

7.5
596
11%

0%

61 of 79

10

Missing from placementHealth

6.4

Latest data

6.8

0%

09/04/2024

363 current open CLA looked after for at least 12 months

Children Looked After (CLA) health and missing/absent from placement

0 of 79 0%

Page 15

Number of missing episodes per CLA

Snapshot

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

0 5 10 15 20 25 30 35 40 45 50+

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

C
L
A

94 93 91 95 94
82

0

50

100

2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 Latest

snapshot%
 o

f 
C

L
A

 c
o

h
o

rt

SNs Eng LA

87 84

35

81 86 79

0

50

100

2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 Latest

snapshot

%
 o

f 
C

L
A

 c
o

h
o

rt

SNs Eng LA

100%

77%

Offered RHI  Accepted RHI

P
age 37



Official Sensitive#

0 462

Care leaver eligibility summary (please refer to DfE guidance for full 

eligibility criteria)

Eligible

Relevant

Former 

Relevant

Qualifying

(Annex A 

requires only 

those 

requesting and 

receiving a 

service)

~ Age 16 or 17

~ Has been looked after for at least 13 weeks since age 14 (can 

be multiple periods)

~ Currently looked after

~ Age 16 or 17

~ Has been looked after for at least 13 weeks since age 14 (can 

be multiple periods)

~ Looked after on or after their 16th birthday

~ No longer looked after

~ Aged between 18 and 25

~ Previously an eligible or relevant child (see above definitions)

~ Aged between 16 and 21 (or 25 if in education)

~ Looked after on or after their 16th birthday

~ Not looked after for at least 13 weeks since age 14 or

~ privately fostered after the age of 16 but before the age of 18 

or

~ were looked after prior to becoming subject to a SGO

Care leavers by age and eligibility 
(where highlighted, please check eligibility/age criteria)

Eligible Relevant
Former 

Relevant
Qualifying Other Total

0 0 48 0 0 48
Other 0

46 0

21
22

2 0 59
16
17
18
19
20

0 0 66 2 0 68
0 0 61

462 care leavers who have reached the threshold for receiving leaving care services

5 1

Children's services Analysis Tool (ChAT) 09 April 2024

0 40 0 0 40
0 0 38 0 0 38
0 0 36 0

7

#REF!

2 0 63
0 0 63 0 0 63

0 0 0 0 0

0

0 36

Total 97 5 353

23
24

Page 16

0 1 0 47

Care leavers eligibility, PA allocation and pathway plans Snapshot 09/04/2024

Relevant and Qualifying Children (16/17 year olds) - comparing personal advisor allocation and pathway plans

Eligible Children (16/17 year olds) - comparing personal advisor allocation and pathway plans

51

28

69

49

72

31

51

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

16 17 Overall

%
 E

li
g

ib
le

 1
6
/1

7
 y

/o

Eligible 16/17 year olds by pathway plan

Pathway plan No pathway plan

0 0 0

100 100 100

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

16 17 Overall

%
 E

li
g

ib
le

 1
6
/1

7
 y

/o
 

Eligible 16/17 year olds by personal advisor 

allocation

PA Allocated No PA allocated

0

29
25

100

71
75

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

16 17 Overall

%
 R

e
le

va
n

t/
Q

u
a
li
fy

in
g

 1
6
/1

7
 y

/o

Relevant/Qualifying 16/17 year olds by pathway plan

Pathway plan No pathway plan

0

14 13

100

86 88

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

16 17 Overall

%
 R

e
le

va
n

t/
Q

u
a
li
fy

in
g

 1
6
/1

7
 y

/o

Relevant/Qualifying 16/17 year olds by personal 

advisor allocation

PA Allocated No PA allocated

P
age 38



Official Sensitive#

White
Mixed
Asian or Asian British
Black or black British
Other ethnic group
Not stated
Not recorded

Other' includes not recorded, not stated, or neither M/F

Ethnic background

5%
0%
0%

Remain with former foster carer

Aged 18 Aged 19-20

Children's services Analysis Tool (ChAT) 09 April 2024 Page 17

6%

Care leavers - UASC/Former UASC (16/17 year olds)

Care leavers - UASC/Former UASC (17/18 & 19/20/21 year olds)

#REF!

Remained in care until aged 18

YP who ceased to be looked after aged 16-plus who were looked after until their 18th birthday

#REF!

48 (10%) care leavers with a 

disability

77%
6%
5%

Care leavers demographics and UASC Snapshot 09/04/2024

Age and gender

60 40 20 0 20 40 60

15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

Age 25

274 Males (59%) 188 Females (41%)

0 Other (not shown) (0%)

89
100 100 100 100

94

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

'18-19 '19-20 '20-21 '21-22 '22-23 Last 6ms

%
 o

f 
Y

P

SNs Eng LA

0

63 58

87
65 70 61 6558 60 62 61

2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23

LA SNs Eng

31 36 35
23

39 38 41
47

28 30 31 32

2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23

LA SNs Eng

9
12 10

91
88 90

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

16 17 Overall

%
 E

li
g

ib
le

 1
6
/1

7
 y

/o
 

Eligible 16/17 year olds by UASC Status

UASC Not UASC

0 0 0

100 100 100

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

16 17 Overall

%
 R

e
le

va
n

t/
Q

u
a
li
fy

in
g

 1
6
/1

7
 y

/o

Relevant/qualifying 16/17 year olds by 

UASC Status

UASC Not UASC

0

8 7

100

92 93

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

17 18 Overall

%
 R

e
l/

F
o

rm
e
r 

R
e
l. 

1
7
/1

8
 y

/o
 

Relevant/former relevant 17/18 year olds 

by UASC Status

UASC/Former UASC Not UASC/Former UASC

8
5 5 6

92
95 95 94

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

19 20 21 Overall

%
 F

o
rm

e
r 

R
e
l. 

1
9
/2

0
/2

1
 y

/o
 

Former relevant 19/20/21 year olds by 

UASC Status

Former UASC Not former UASC

P
age 39



Official Sensitive#

09/04/2024Care leavers pathway plan and contact timescales Snapshot

Page 18

#REF!

Children's services Analysis Tool (ChAT) 09 April 2024

0 0

20 20

0

60

17
18

17

9

2

38

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

0-3months 3-6 months 6-9 months 9-12 months 1+ yrs Not recorded

%
 R

e
l/

F
o

rm
e
r 

R
e
l. 

1
7
/1

8
 y

/o
 

Pathway Plan last updated - 17/18 year olds (relevant/former relevant)

17 18

25

34

16

8

3

13

19

32

29

2

6

1313

38

28

3

13

8

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

0-3months 3-6 months 6-9 months 9-12 months 1+ yrs Not recorded

%
 F

o
rm

e
r 

R
e
l. 

1
9
/2

0
/2

1
 y

/o
 

Pathway Plan last updated 19/20/21 year olds (former relevant)

19 20 21

0

40

20 20

0

20

29

36

9

3 3

20

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

0-2 months 2-4 months 4-6 months 6-12 months 1+ years Not recorded

%
 R

e
l/

F
o

rm
e
r 

R
e
l. 

1
7
/1

8
 y

/o
 

Time since last contact - 17/18 year olds (relevant/former relevant)

17 18

13

64

10

3
7

3

19

59

14

6

2
0

5

59

15

10 10

0
0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

0-2 months 2-4 months 4-6 months 6-12 months 1+ years Not recorded

%
 F

o
rm

e
r 

R
e
l. 

1
9
/2

0
/2

1
 y

/o
 

Time since last contact - 19/20/21 year olds (former relevant)

19 20 21

P
age 40



Official Sensitive#

ChAT
Numbers in cohort
LA in touch with YP

ChAT
Numbers in cohort
LA in touch with YP

#REF!

LA in touch with 19-21 year olds (former relevant)

Aged 19 Aged 20 Aged 21 Total
61 63 40 164

90%

89% 87% 95% 90%

60%

33% 62% 60%

Children's services Analysis Tool (ChAT) 09 April 2024 Page 19

Care leavers PA allocation and in touch Snapshot 09/04/2024

LA in touch with 17-18 year olds (relevant/former relevant)

Aged 17 Aged 18 Total
6 66 72

In touch

Not in touch

Not recorded

100

0

100
90 84

60

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 Latest

snapshot

%
 o

f 
Y

P
 1

7
-1

8

SNs Eng LA

In touch

Not in touch

Not recorded

94

0

98
90 85 90

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 Latest

snapshot

%
 o

f 
Y

P
 1

9
-2

1

SNs Eng LA

0

64
59

100

36
41

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

17 18 Overall

%
 R

e
l/

F
o

rm
e
r 

R
e
l. 

1
7
/1

8
 y

/o
 

17/18 year olds by personal advisor allocation (relevant/former relevant)

PA Allocated No PA allocated

79

95

63

81

21

5

38

19

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

19 20 21 Overall

%
 F

o
rm

e
r 

R
e
l. 

1
9
/2

0
/2

1
 y

/o
 

19/20/21 year olds by personal advisor allocation (former relevant)

PA Allocated No PA allocated

P
age 41



Official Sensitive#

ChAT ChAT
Numbers in cohort Numbers in cohort
In suitable accommodation In suitable accommodation

6

Accommodation types of 19-21 year olds

Children's services Analysis Tool (ChAT) 09 April 2024

Snapshot

82%

Total Aged 21 TotalAged 18

87%
66 72

83%

09/04/2024

83%

Aged 17

81%
63

Accommodation suitability of 19-21 year olds (former relevant)Accommodation suitability of 17-18 year olds (relevant/former relevant)

Aged 20
38

#REF!

61%

61%

Page 20

162

Accommodation types of 17-18 year olds

50%

Aged 19

62%
61

Care leavers accommodation suitability and type

Suitable accom

Not suitable

No information

100

0

98 91 81
61

0

50

100

150

2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 Latest

snapshot

%
 o

f 
Y

P
 1

7
-1

8
SNs Eng LA

18

1

17

7

0

0

0

0

0

0

3

0

0

0

14

1

39

0 10 20 30 40 50

With parents or relatives

Community home

Semi-independent transitional

Supported lodgings

Gone abroad

Deported

Ordinary lodgings

Residence not known

No fixed abode / homeless

Foyers

Independent living

Emergency accommodation

Bed and breakfast

In custody

With Former Foster Carer

Other accommodation

LA does not have information

% 17-18 year olds

Latest snapshot LA 22-23 SNs 22-23 Eng 22-23

Suitable accom

Not suitable

No information

92 92 92

87 88

83

75

80

85

90

95

'18-19 '19-20 '20-21 '21-22 '22-23 Latest

%
 o

f 
Y

P
 1

9
-2

1

SNs Eng LA

15

5

9

6

0

0

2

1

1

0

32

2

0

5

9

4

10

0 10 20 30 40 50

With parents or relatives

Community home

Semi-independent transitional

Supported lodgings

Gone abroad

Deported

Ordinary lodgings

Residence not known

No fixed abode / homeless

Foyers

Independent living

Emergency accommodation

Bed and breakfast

In custody

 With Former Foster Carer

Other accommodation

LA does not have information

% 19-21 year olds

Latest snapshot LA 22-23 SNs 22-23 Eng 22-23P
age 42



Official Sensitive#

ChAT ChAT
Numbers in cohort Numbers in cohort
In EET In EET

Education, Employment, or Training (EET) of 17-18 year olds (relevant/former relevant) Education, Employment, or Training (EET) of 19-21 year olds (former relevant)

Children's services Analysis Tool (ChAT) 09 April 2024

09/04/2024

42%

#REF!

Activity types of 17-18 year olds (relevant/former relevant)

61
36%

38%

38%

Snapshot

66 72
Total

Page 21

63

Activity types of 19-21 year olds (former relevant)

6
Aged 18

Care leavers activity (Education, Employment, or Training)

164
41% 41%

42%

40
Aged 17 Aged 19 Aged 20 Aged 21 Total

50% 45%

Longest 

YP in EET NEET

No info

72

46

58 61
52

38

0

20

40

60

80

2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 Latest

snapshot

%
 o

f 
Y

P
 1

7
-1

8
SNs Eng LA

3

21

14

3

17

4

38

24

39

0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70

Higher education (EET)

Education other than higher (EET)

Training / employment (EET)

Illness / disability (NEET)

Other (NEET)

Pregnancy / parenting (NEET)

EET total

NEET total

LA does not have information

% 17-18 year olds

Latest snapshot LA 22-23 SNs 22-23 Eng 22-23

8

9

25

17

25

5

42

47

11

0 10 20 30 40 50 60

Higher education (EET)

Education other than higher (EET)

Training / employment (EET)

Illness / disability (NEET)

Other (NEET)

Pregnancy / parenting (NEET)

EET total

NEET total

LA does not have information

% 19-21 year olds

Latest snapshot LA 22-23 SNs 22-23 Eng 22-23

YP in EET NEET

No info

0

50

37 38

47
42

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

'18-19 '19-20 '20-21 '21-22 '22-23 Latest

%
 o

f 
Y

P
 1

9
-2

1

SNs Eng LA

P
age 43



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes- Corporate Parenting Board- 29 February 2024
	4 Care Experienced Youth Voice Update- March 2024- April 2024
	report-for-you-matter-to-us-cpb-march-april-2024-v2
	Pledges update from the meeting 28th March 2024 V1

	5 Corporate Parenting Board- Performance Data

